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1. Name of Froperty
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historic name: Gamble Building and Miner's Bean Kettle

other name/site number: Express Office Eullding, Wells Fargo Bullding,
Raggio Store, Cobden Building.
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2. Location
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street & number: 175944 Btate Highway 120

not for publication: N/A
Clhy/Ztownt Big Dok F LAt o e e e o e e e e e e o vicinity: _
state: CA countyr Tuwolumne_ . o - code: 109 ip coder U300
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3. Classiflcation

50 EIME SEOR B3 3505 ST 2000 SO VR 100 YO SO M) IO JEUNE VNN (XYY 3200 138D SO0 LSTHS JRINY OUSY UY SO 0008 200 202 FOOOT ST 0SSP IS NNCNY IOV O ST D3N MO FRND RO NS NS UG RS L0 DU LR00 (300 3200 RN D RS I3 S D0 200 P I3 IS22 OO0 S 3 NP IYOSY NUNY 3N P 0% % I e ey
Ownership of FProperty:s Private

Category of Froperty: Bullding

Number of Resources within Propertys

Contributing Noncontributing

e buildingms
__________ alten
__________ structures
—— —— objects
B Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National
Registers __0O

Name of related multiple property listing: N/A
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4, State/Federal Agency Certification
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As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act
of 1984, as amended, I hereby certify that this _X__ nomination ____
request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation
standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements
set forth in 36 CFR Part &0, In my opinion, the property _X__ meets
. does not meet the National Register Criteria. ___ See continuation

aheet.
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State or Fadaral agency and bureau

In my opinion, the propaerty ____ meats ____ does not meet the National
Register criteria. ___ See continuation sheet.
Bignature of commenting or other official Date
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Btate or Federal agency and bureau
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Y. National Park Service Certification
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I, haereby certify that this property ia:

eglated
? dagyional,B
_4& entered in the National Register LWL et ;g§g¢a4<L __SAA2SG)

——— See continuation sheet.
determined eligible for the
National Register

ew_ Bee continuation sheet.
datarminad not wligible for the
National Reqglster

removed from the National Register
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other (explain):
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Signature of Keeper Date
of Action
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b, Function or Use
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Hismtoric: Commerce/Trade,._ oo Subr fipancial inmtitution____._
_____________________________ department store__
business

Current @ Vacant e BUB Y e e e e e e e

o sast 208 WEP BALD O SO0SH BAL0 DASSS S0VRS PONNA $OSMG CONSE SSOFT LSMIE BNPSH HNOO) FUrr SUBAF BHUSS FSPRO VOWER SESNT SROAD POMMY $80eP CORNE BOMNL e e el b L T )

500es dovis SISO 0UOO0 SUOSR VNN FPOOS THOR BOURY VAFOL AU NORRY SMOOM SHOGH UORN BOSVL PAOOO SLN0G SUOSE SOOI M AR WA PROM0 00 PO SHele BOONE 00 A0S0 AT costn soewd 011N GOORS MBS et USOSH WG Mare 40O PR S04r3 OYPM MR GSESE SORN SOIV) SYOOS TONUP SN VRS WP SPRNY S1OSY TARSH



UBDI/NFES NRHF Regiatration Form The Gamble Building Pagen

ST B3 S8 SO RIS %20 ST S I SRS INE (TRSY SSED IS0 RIS DT (530 SEIRY SUD (355 ENTY SDY IS5 RNV IR 1203 A9 0T 1300 IS PSS 0O 4 CRPP ISS FETID SSEC E 23 IRNS F0I5 FI20 PRO NS et RIS 06T (YO RSP JROR 3OS ETD (3NN X iy 27 IS RAD RIS FRC N2 IS G0 L3R S PN 1520 I O N IR B

7. Description

Architectural Classification:s

Italianate
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Materials: foundation stone roof metal ——m———

walls stone other
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Demcribe prement and historiec physical appearance. _X_ Ses continuation
mheet .
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8. Statement of Significancm
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Certifying official has conmidered the significance of this property in
relation to other properties: statewide "
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Applicable National Register Criteriar C & A

Criteria Consliderations (Exceptions) 3

Areas of Slignificancer ArchltectUure o e
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Feriod(s) of Significancer: c. 1832 ~ 1930
Significant Dates 1c. 1852, c. 1870

Significant Person(s): N/A
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Cultural Af+iliations N/A

Architect/Bul lder: O O WY e i
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Btate significance of property, and Justify criteria, criteria
conslderations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.
X. Bee continuation sheet.

X
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9. Major Bibliographical References
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X_. See continuation sheet.

Frevious documentation on file (NFS8): N/A

preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) has been
requested.

previously listed in the National Register

previously determined eligible by the National Register

designated a National Historic Landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey .

recorded by Historic American Engineering Record # _

X recorded in Big Oak Flat - Groveland Historic Sites Survey, 1988.

Primary Location of Additional Datar

X Btate historic preservation office

_ Other atate agency

- Federal agency

Local government

_ Univermity

X Other -- Speclify Repository: Southern Tuolumne County Hist. Soc.
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10, Geographical Data
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Acreage of FProperty: .29
UTM References: Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
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—— Bee continuation sheet.
Verbal Roundary Description: ___ See continuation sheet.
The southern sixty (60') fest of Anaessor’'s Farcels 7-182-01, 7-182-02 and
7~-182~-2T (mew enclomed plot map).
Boundary Justification: ___ See continuation sheet.

This includen all remaining property historically associated with the
Bamble BHuilding and the Miner's Bean Kettle building.
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11. Form Frepared By
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Name/Title: Mark V. Thornton/ Himstorian~Consultant for the Southern
Tuolumne County Historical Society

Organization:South. Tuolumne Cty. Hist. Soc. Date: 11-14-19%90

Btreet % Number: F.0. Box 1849 Telephones (209) 962~760%

City or Town: RBig QOak Flat StaterCA  ZIP: 9EROS
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The Gamble Bullding with attached jallhouse room is situated on the
north side of State Highway 120 and east of the Big 0Oak Road. The highway
is a slightly widened and paved version of the original wagon trall which
constituted Big Oak Flat's Main Street. The Gamble Building was constructed
between 1848 and 1852 and has remained virtually unchanged since then.
BRetween the Gamble Bullding and the Rig 0Oak Road stande a wood frame
building known commonly as the Miner’'s Bean Kettle. This building was
constructed c. 1870 and is attached to the south wall of the Gamble
Building's Jallhouse room.

The Gamble Bullding is & large, rectangular stone structure that's
approvimately 64 wide by 956’ deep. A small rectangular one room Jjall is
attached to the northwest corner. The Gamble building has a perimeter stone
foundation and interior pier and post supportas. The building is constructed
principally of slate rock but features & wide, decorated brick frieze along
the front facade that wraps around, in a tapered dewsign, at each end. This
frimze and the quoins around the three paired, bricked—-lined doorways
across the front (south wall) provide just & hint of an Italianate influ-
ence to the structure’'s design. The front doorways are U'0" wide by 9' high
and contain palred, folding iron fire doors which close over 1/2 glazed
double doors. Acroms the back are thres 4'9" wide by 8’ high doorway open-
ings that are enclosed by single large iron doors over interior wooden
doora. The rear (narth) wall is covered with vines., The east and west walls
are solid stone with no openings, excepting the Jailhouse extension towards
tha rear of the west wall, The perimeter walls of the Bamble Building,
including the jailhouse, are roughly 18" thick.

The Gamble EBuilding is comprised of four main sections, three large
sulites and one small Jailhouse cell. Each suite has its own front and rear
entry, The suites are divided into two, with the rear portion being smaller
in size. The aastern suite is roughly 1000 square faet, the middle and
wastern suites are about 1200 sguare feet each. An interior connecting
arcade at the front of the suites has been walled shut. Trap doors in each
sulte provide access to separate root cellars measuring about 00 square
feret each. The Bamble Bullding has a corrugated metal shed roof which
covers the timber and mud mortared roof framing. The original terne plate
covered adobe brick roofing was removed years ago.

Located to the rear of the Gamble Bullding on the west side 18 the
aforementioned Jjailbhouse. This small (116" wide by 21' deep) stone and
adobe room appears to be a contemporaneous and integral part of the Gamble
Bullding (spe enclosed drawing). The room served for a time as the
community’'s Jaill., Ite eastern wall is solid, providing no access to the
interior of the Gamble Bullding's western sulte. Centered in the rear
(north) wall of the jail im a small 12" x 18" window with metal shutter, A
IZ by 47" high window with iron shutter is centered in the west wall. Iron
bars are situated 1in the window opening. The exterior of the Jjail’'s west
and south walls have been plastered. A amall shed roof extends down from
the Gamble Building’'s primary roof covering the Jjail and rear portion of
the Miner's Bean Kettle. Entry to the jalilhoume room is through the south
wall which has been enclosed by the attached Miner’'s BEean Kettle bullding.
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The three room Miner's Bean Kettle is 14'6" wide by 33’ deep and is
divided 1into two sections with the front (and larger section) having &
corrugated metal covered gabled roof. The rear portion is covered with a
corrugated metal shed roof that extends down from the Bamble Building and
rung back to cover the jail. The Miner's Bean Kettle has & pier and post
foundation with corrugated metal siding over the original plank siding. The
windows on the south (front) and west sides and the front entry have been
boarded over with scrap plvwood. A narrow gap exists between the east wall
of the Miner's Eean Kettle and the west wall of the Gamble Building's
weastern sulte., Large Chinese Locust "trees of heaven'" grace the wast aside
of the Miner's Besan Kettle. A rear entry i off-set in the north wall.

The corrugated metal siding and roofing for the Miner's Bean Kettle
and roofing for the Gamble EBuilding were sdded around 1900, A recently
constructed slate stone walk extends across the front of the Gamble
Building, starting at ground level on the east property boundary running
westerly to terminate in & two step steir on the west side of the Miner's
Bean Kettle. This stone walk replaced a smaller concrete walk which in turn
had replaced the original boardwalk. A shed roof awning across the front of
the Gamble Bullding wams removed a number of years ago. A small portion of
the rear wall of the Gamble Bullding failed a few years ago but was care-
fully restored. Discoloration in the stone on the front wall of the eastern
suite raises questions about this portion of the Bamble Bullding’'s history,
although any changes done there appear to have been performed during the
structure’'s first decade of life. Because the exterior walls surrounding
the rear rooms of the sultes show poorer workmanshlip and crude materials
and due to the slightly different floor plan, it’'se been suggested that this
part of the Gamble Buillding (including the Jjailhouse) might predate the
front portion and may constitute the original Savage Trading Post. It's
alen possible that Big Oak Flat's great fire of 1863 damaged the rear
portion of the Gamble Building necessitating reconstruction.

Electricity arrived to Big Oak Flat in 1906 and interior wiring
appears to date from that time. Some of the original furnishings of the
Raggio Store, shelving, counters and etc,, are still to be found within the
Gamble Building. In 1934 the wood frame Brinham Store bullding was con-
structed on the parecel immediately to the east of the BGamble RBuilding,
replacing an  earlier structure. This bullding runs along most of the
eamstern wall of the Gamble Building. Today it is used primarily for
storage. The wood frame Ragglo House, bullt circa 1901, is located on the
north portion of Assessor’'s Parcel 7-182-01 and is not a part of this
property registration. A small well house for this residence is located on
the west side of the Jjallhoume.

The Gamble Building and Miner's Bean Kettle have served generally as
storage space for the past 30 years. The SGamble Bullding’'s clome provimity
to & heavily traveled State Highway has not gone without causing wsome
structural strains but despite this and the several aforementioned minor
alterations, both the Gamble Bullding and the Miner's Bean Kettle still
maintain a high degree of integrity and they serve as atriking and vivid
reminders of the glories of RBig Oak Flat's more prosperous past.
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The Gamble Building is significant wnder Criteria C as representing
one of the finest examples of BGold Rush stone commercial architecture to be
seen today. It is one of only two surviving stone buildings in RBig Oak Flat
and it is one of the oldesat buildings to be found in Tuolumne County. It
has & high degree of integrity having under gone few alterations during its
lifetime. It displays splendid craftsmanship, with ®solidly constructed
native slate stone walls accented by brick lined doorways and brick frieze.
The building also derives significance under Criteria A, being one of the
first permanent structures in Blig Oak Flat and having played a long role in
the town's commercial life. The OGamble Building continuously served the
town of Rig Oak Flat from the 18308 until the 1930s.

The associated wood frame building (known as the Miner's Bean kettle
sometime after 1925) was constructed circa 1870. It represents one of only
three wood frame buildings in Big Oak Flat today built prior to the 1890s.
The bullding has had few changes since its erection (chiefly the addition
of corrugated metal siding and rocofing) and it provides insight into the
simple but efficient commercial architecture of the 1870s. This building
gerved as a residence/business facility until the 1940s.

Big Oak Flat is located sast of the Mother Lode in  the east belt
mining region of southern Tuolumne County. The setting is & small mountain
valley which once had & broad, flat grassy floor dotted with stately oaks
and pines. Along the south side of this meadow runs a small creek where, in
late 1848 or early '49, James Savage discovered gold. Savage established a
trading post near this creek and the resultant mining camp was known as
Savage'’'s Diggings. Savage’'s stay wam short livedp after hise departure the
camp was renamed Big Oak Flat in tribute to & magnificent oak tree which
stood quard over the west end of the flat. Beveral hundred people were
engagrd in elther mining or catering to the miners’ needs by 18%0.

One of the earliest and most succesaful merchants Iin BRig Oak Flat was
Alexander Gamble. The Gamble Building was constructed sometime between 1848
and 1852, Tuoclumne County's oldest tex records (18%52) shows that Gamble had
an assessed valuation of #5,000 for land and improvements, the highest
amount in town. He waw one of only a half dozen residents to be assessed in
excess of F1,000. A typlcal frame dwelling house and lot would have run for
£100. The tax rolls of the 18508 referred to Gamble's building alternately
as  elther "The Gamble Block" or "The Express Office." Wells, Fargo and
Company occupied the eastermn suite until 1893, Gamble also owned a smaller
stone building located elsewhere in town.

The Gamble Building was constructed near (or possibly) on  the site of
Savage's Trading Post. By 1882 upwards of 3,000 people are estimated to
have been in and around the Big Oak Flat area. A sizable collection of
permanent bulldings msoon surrounded the Gamble Building, including hotels,
boarding houses, livery stables, restauwrants and, of course, saloons. About
a dozen of these bulldings were constructed of stone or adobe, the rest
were wood frame. Only & few bulldings came near in size and value to
Gamble's, none surpassed it. The Gamble Building was an impressive archi-
tectural achievement with its Ffourteen foot high stone walls and brick
detailing across the front. The stone and brick were obtained locally but



NFB Form {Q=900=a8 OME Approval Ne, 1024=0018 8
(B~86) .

United States Department of the Interior
National Fark Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC FPLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

Section number 8 The Gamble Building Fage 8
T T I T IS I3 N NP NN IR T U 2 SN SO0 IDUSD 50 ISUND SSU JRECY SSNOD SUSS US3S FBI SN0 OO S30% RRS DSDIY 19007 JOOCE LTSS IUURY NSO OSSR ST INIRE SDSHY 2SR 1300 FOSD GONOT ISERR USON3 UURNS DN OUERY G930 KEOCD P37 £ 15507 RS S S0 000y (URT SS07 J00%0 2 INRRD 3 AUNC: 3 oase SN O v Iz v 2
the - hUuge jron fire doors were reportedly packed in via mules.

Big Dak Flat incorporated as a&a city in 1861 but the placers soon
played out. In 1867 A devastating fire laid waste most of the town,
including damaging or destroying asome of the stone bulldings. The fire,
which originated towards the west end of town, apparently was stopped or
slowed in its eastward spread up the north gide of Main Btreet by the
Gamble Building. Accounts of the fire are sketchy and it's unknown how much
damage (if any) the Bamble Building received. The fire destroyed RBig Oak
Flat ‘s original Jjail. It's &t this point that the Gamble Building’'s Jjail
room came into service., It is unclear what use this room had prior to the
fire. Unlike the Gamble Building’'s three sultes, the Jall shares no
interior passageway with the adjolining suwite and its roof is separate.
However, the rear (north) wall of the jailhouse is an integral extension of
the western suite’'s north wall. It may be that the back portion of the
Bamble Building, including the Jjallhouse room, WRE & result of
reconstruction or & new addition after the 1863 fire. Frior to the fire, N.
T. Cody’'s apothecary was located in a&a <$rame bullding on the west side of
the Gamble Building and the Jallhouse room may have been enclosed by this
building. It's believed that the 18463 fire destroyed Cody's frame building.

Many merchants opted not to rebulld after the fire and In 1864 city
incorporation cerased. By the late 18608, Gamble had sold his interest in
the western suite of the Gamble Bullding to merchants, Marconl and Murphy.
Dominic Cuneo acquired the middle asuite at this same time. The QGamble
family retained ownership of the eastern suite where Wells, Fargo and
Company continued business. Around 1B70 Lewis Costa acquired the Jjailhouse
which now had & small frame building attached to it (the future Miner 's
Bean Kettle). The frame bulilding’'s construction date is unknown, The frame
bulilding and jail served as Costa’'s place of residence and business.

Rig Oak Flat contained only & few dozen buildings when it was surveyed
and patented a8 & townmite in 1877. Most of the structures had been lost in
the 1863 fire. Others, left vacant after the fire, had fallen into ruin.
Gold mining played & minor role in the economy while catering to ranchers
and & growing Yosemite bound tourist trade provided the chief source of
income for the town. From thie time until the early 18%90s the Gamble
Building continued to serve the community &8 a general store and express
office. The Gamble Bullding's sultes also saw use from the 184608 to the
18908 as & law office, pomt office, cobbler shop and Justice couwrt.

Marconi and Murphy sold thelr interest in  the western suite to Joseph
Raggio in 187% and it is here that the Raggio Store operated into the 20th
century. In 1879 Raggio also purchased the attached one room jailhouse and
associated wood frame building from Costa. Raggio used the frame bullding
and Jjailhouse for his residence until about 1901 when he moved into his rnew
resldence located to the north of the Gamble Bullding. After 1900 the frame
building and Gamble building received thelr corrugated metal roofs. The
popular building material was also used as siding on the frame bullding.

Big Oak Flat's economy remained at a low ebb from the late 1860s
wntil the mid-1890s. In 1893 Wellw, Fargo and Company left town. In 1899
Thomas Reld purchased this sulte of the Gamble Bullding from John Gamble.
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By now, improvements in deep shaft mining coupled with the advent of
economical hydroelectric power had spurred a hard rock mining boom. In
1907, Victor Repetto, cobbler and postmaster, purchased the middle suite of
the Gamble Building from Cuneo. Ragglio continued to maintain his general
atore in the western suite and may have rented the eastern suite from Reid.
Many new bulildings were constructed at this time but the Gamble Building
remained a central fixture in BRig Oak Flat's business district. Over a half
dozen stamp mills were in operation in the area when World War 1 brought a
near stop to this second gold rush. Bold mining never recovered.

One more economic boom did follow. Big Oak Flat's sister camp of
Broveland (Bavage's second diggings that was originally named Barrote) was
chogen as the mountain construction hbeadquarters for the immense Hetch
Hetchy Water and FPower Froject. Congress approved 8an Francisco's project
in 1913 and a Fflurry of activity ensued until construction work shifted
westward at the end of the 19208. The Gamble Building's doors remained open
during this time, catering to RBRig Oak Flat's commercial needs. In 1917 Reld
sold his interest in the eastern suite of the Gamble Building to Raggio and
Marconi. Raggio’'s business operations now surrounded Repetto’'s shoe shop.
In 1925 Edward Cobden acquired the Jailhouse and assoclated wood frame
building. He later rented it out as & residence/business known as the
Mimer'ms Bean Kettle restauwrant, sald buseiness continuing into the 1%940s.

From the 192308 until the 19708 Rig Oak Flat was a quliet, nearly
forgotten ranching town deriving some income from the tourist trade. The
Gamble Building and Miner's Bean Kettle were vacant during much of this
time. The central suite remalned in Repetto’'s ownership until his death in
1936 when title pamsed to his sisters. They sold their portiom of the
building to Harry Cobden in the 19608. Cobden is a grandson of both Luigl
Marconi and Joseph Raggio and thus it is that the Gamble Building was once
again under single ownership. It was Cobden's father, Edward, who in {901
built the Raggio residence to the north of the Gamble Building. Also, the
Miner's Bean Kettle's corrugated metal siding and roofing and the Gamble
Building's corrugated metal roofing were installed by Edward Cobden.

The Gamble Bullding and the Miner's HBean Kettle remain magnificent
examples of Gold Rush and early day settlement architecture. Wells, Fargo
and Company's long tenuwre in the Gamble Building’'s eastern suite highlights
this buillding’'s central role in Rig Oak Flat's early sconomic life. Today
the Bamble Buillding, "Wells Fargo Bullding,” or "Cobden Bullding” as many
are want to say, stands vacant but & new population boom is occuwrring as
many Californian’s discover the beauty and peace of living in the Slerra
Nevada foothills. This increased activity is revitalizing the area. In the
past three years a new group formed, the Bouthern Tuolumne County Histori-
cal Bociety, with plans to turn the Bamble Bullding into & museum and shin-
ing memorial to ouw rich paast. It and the nearby Odd Fellows Hall remain
Rig Oak Flat's only stone Gold Rush buildings to have survived to the pre-
sent. Harry Cobden’'s long time desire has been to see the Gamble RBuilding
and the Miner's Bean Kettle receive the recognition they so richly deserve.
National Register status and his donation of this property to the Bouthern
Tuslumne County Historical Bociety are sure to accomplish this goal.
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Editors of Sunset Magazine. Gold Rush Country. Menlo Park,

CA: Lane Magazine & Book Co. 1967.

Schlichtman Margaret E. and Irene Paden. The Eig Oak Flat Road to
Yosemite. Oakland, CAs1 The Holms Book Company, 1939.

Thornton Mark V. Big Qak Flat - Groveland Historic Bites Survey,
1988. Big Qak Flat, CA: The Southern Tuolumne County
Himtorical Society, 1988.

Wurm Ted. Hetch Hetchy and Ites Dam Railroad. Berkeley, CAx
Howmll~North Books, 1973.

~~~~~~~~ "Harry Cobden File." Miscellanecus information per-
taining to the Gamble Building. On file with the
Bouthern Tuolumne County Historical Society, Big Oak
Flat, CA.

Borzage Ke M, "Gambel (sic) Building" Blue Prints of floor plan
and elevations, June 1988. 0On file with the Southern
Tuolumne County Historical Society, Big Qak Flat, CA.

Thornton Mark V. All photographs taken September 1990 for
National Register submission. Negatives on file with
MVT, Broveland, CA.

Noten Frimary sources for information on  the Gamble Building wers
accamsad for the Blg Oak Flat — Oroveland Survey and are listed in ites
biblingraphy.
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Gamble Bulilding

Tuolumne County

California

Mark V. Thornton, photographer

All photos taken 9-20-~1990

Negatives on file with MVT, P.0. Box 192, GBroveland, California

#1s Front (south) wall, looking north.

B2 Southeast corner, looking northwast.

%31 Rear (naorth) wall, looking wmast.

#43 Bouthwest corner, looking northeast.

LT West wall Jjailhouse attachment, looking north, NE.

LY Bouthwest cornar of the Miner’'s Bean kKettle, looking
northeast.

#7 Weast aide of the Gamble Building showing relation of

jailhouse to the Miner's Bean Kettle, looking east.



